#### Minutes of Combs Parish Council Meeting Monday 10 January 2022 at 7.30pm, Battisford Cricket Club

#### (DRAFT UNTIL SIGNED)

**Present:** S Scarff (Chairman); I Walker (Vice Chairman); S Ottewell (councillor); T Kitson (councillor); T Betchley (councillor); K Oakes (County Councillor); J Matthissen (District Councillor)(arrived 8:05 PM); T Bamber (Clerk).

#### 1. Apologies for Absence

V Whitehead (Councillor) (by prior agreement); T Chaplin (Councillor) (by prior agreement);

#### 2. Declarations of Interest/Lobbying

None

#### 3. Public Forum

There were no members of the public present

#### 4. Minutes of Meeting held on Monday 13 December 2021

Minutes for Monday 13 December 2021 were reviewed and it was agreed that they were to be signed as a true and accurate copy of the meeting by the Chairman.

#### 5. Matters arising from the Minutes

Councillors thanked Cllr Oakes for her work in resolving the drain issue in Park Road. The clerk confirmed that Mr Hartley of Greener Gardens will start maintaining the cemetery from Spring.

#### 6. County Councillor's Report

The County Councillor had sent her report and it is attached as appendix 1.

A councillor reported that Jack's lane was flooded in the usual place. Cllr Oakes asked that the clerk report this on the highways tool and then she would monitor developments.

#### Action: clerk to report flooding

#### 7. District Councillor's Report

The District Councillor had not arrived at this point but his contribution, on arrival after another parish council's meeting, at 8:05 pm is recorded here for agenda consistency. The district council report is attached as appendix 2.

Cllr Matthissen is still in discussion regarding the application relating to the development opposite the Tannery.

#### 8. Parish Council Chairman's Report

Nothing to report that is not covered elsewhere.

Ster

#### 9. Planning

- a. Applications received for consideration:
  - i. DC/21/06191 27 Combs Green external alterations

The Council voted to support this application.

ii. DC/21/06932- Tye Cottage, Moats Tye - Erection of single storey extension

Councillors voted to support this application

#### Action: Clerk to post Councillors' views on planning website

- b. Decisions received from MSDC
  - i. DC/21/05833 Oaks Meadow children's play area etc granted. Noted

#### 10. Finance

a. Accounts review to date – Current Account balance as of 31 December 2021 was £38,170.52 and the savings account balance was unchanged at £1,922.71.

The Budget analysis and financial summary were reviewed and accepted. The clerk confirmed that the Section 137 expenditure had been £250 so far this year.

b. Payments received (none)

### c. Payments to hand

i. Eon Electricity for streetlights (direct debit): £73.93. Approved by all councillors (*Parish Councils Act* 1957, S.3; Highways Act 1980 S.301)

#### d. Budget and precept 2022/23

The clerk reported that Mid Suffolk District Council's tax base has been confirmed as that which had been indicated, and discussed, at the last meeting. Accordingly the council AGREED unanimously to adopt the proposed budget, based on a planned expenditure of £14,292. It was further AGREED that the precept should remain unchanged at £9000.

The precept request form was signed by the chairman and the clerk.

#### Action: Clerk to submit precept request.

e. Audit 2022

Councillors agreed that SALC be asked to carry out the internal audit. Other options were considered but as SALC's auditors had been fair and professional in the past, and in light of the probability that the clerk's workload would increase were a new party to become involved, the minor difference in cost was not sufficient to warrant change.

Action: Clerk to contact SALC.

Bar

#### 11. Donation Requests

Requests for financial support had been received from Lighthouse Women's Aid and SARS. Councillors had considered the requests in the context of the charitable donations policy and Cllr Kitson summarised their views.

It was agreed that while both charities were worthy organisations, neither had any demonstrable direct links to the village, and both were well funded. Accordingly, councillors agreed that both requests be declined, but that Lighthouse be given the opportunity to provide an item publicising their work for inclusion in the next newsletter.

#### Action: Clerk to write to charities.

#### 12. Councillor Numbers

It was noted that the six months leave of absence agreed for cllrs Whitehead and Chaplin had now passed. The clerk had just written to both councillors to enquire if they wished to return, resign or extend their absence but had so far not heard back. The chairman said that he would contact them but in recognition of the possibility that one or both might choose to resign, thoughts should be given to their replacement(s).

The clerk reported that resignations must be formally reported to the Returning Officer and specified procedures must be followed in the publication of vacancies. Furthermore, if ten or more residents request an election, this must be arranged. If no request for a by-election is received within 14 days of publication of the vacancy, councillors would be free to co-opt villagers.

#### 13. Correspondence/Any Other Business

- Cllr Ottewell reported that the Christmas foodbank collection had been a great success, with over 1,000 parcels delivered locally. Apparently more was received in Combs than any other village.
- The chairman reported that the footbridge on footpath 58 had broken slats. The clerk was instructed to report this.
- The clerk reported that the requisite three-yearly declaration of compliance had been submitted and acknowledged by the Pensions Regulator .

#### 14. Date and time of next meeting – Monday 14<sup>th</sup> February at 7.30pm in Battisford and District Cricket Club.

The Meeting closed at 8.35 pm

(m

### Appendix 1 – County Councillor's Report

# January 2022 Town and Parish Newsletter

# Children's services and adult care at the heart of Suffolk County Council's new budget plans

Suffolk County Council has outlined how it plans to spend money on public services in 2022/23.

- More money to support children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND)
- Extra resources for adults in need of care
- Additional funds to prevent flooding and fix footpaths

Under the proposals, the council's budget for 2022-23 would rise by 4.5% (from £598.2 to £625.4m). This additional money is generated by a 2.99% increase in Council Tax, and an increase in grants received from the Government.

The proposals will be presented at a scrutiny meeting in January, then put forward for approval by councillors in February.

# Councillor Richard Rout, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and Environment at Suffolk County Council, said:

"I've worked with my colleagues to propose a budget which will not see any reductions in our services, and invests further where it is most needed. Our aim is always to provide the best possible services for everyone in Suffolk and provide value for money.

"This has been a difficult budget to consider, particularly as Covid continues to make life challenging on every level, including our finances.

"We also continue to face rising costs and hugely increasing demands on our services year on year, particularly our adult care and children's services.

"But this is a budget which helps us to respond to these demands, and meets our priorities for next year. For example increasing our family services budget by £1.1m from next year, to specifically to address the recommendations made by the recent independent SEND review – this is in addition to our previous commitment of £45m to develop SEND provision."

#### The council's priorities are to:

promote and support the health and wellbeing of all people in Suffolk

- strengthen the local economy
- protect and enhance the environment
- provide value for money for the Suffolk taxpayer

#### Some of the detail of the budget proposals, includes:

- £1.1m increase for the family services budget, specifically to address recommendations made by the recent independent SEND review
- £1m additional funding for Suffolk Highways over the next four years, for example to fund road signs and responsible verge cutting
- £10m to specifically deliver an increasing number of drainage schemes (over the next three years)
- £10m to improve footpath quality and access (over the next three years)
- £12.8m to decarbonise the buildings that we own (by 2030)
- Investments this year to set up future borrowing for bigger schemes, such as SEND and carbon reduction

Regarding Council Tax, the proposed 2.99% increase would be made up of a 1.99% increase in general Council Tax and a 1.00% increase dedicated to funding adult care.

#### This means costs for a household would look like:

- Band D property: £27.60 per week (80 pence per week increase from 2021-22)
- Band B property: £21.47 per week (62 pence per week increase from 2021-22) (Band B properties are the most common in Suffolk)

#### **Councillor Rout continued:**

"Proposing an increase in council tax is not a decision we take lightly, particularly when our costs of living are going up too.

"However, I think there is increasing recognition of the pressure our services are under. In our public consultation, there were more people who agreed that council tax would need to go up next year, compared to those that didn't. This was especially true for funding adult care.

"By paying this extra each week, we are all helping the council to provide its key services, and helping support those who need it most.

"If anyone does have concerns about paying their council tax, they may be eligible for the Council Tax Reduction Scheme, which is managed by our borough and district councils. You could receive help if you are on a low income, even if you are working."

The budget proposals will be presented at a Scrutiny Meeting on Tuesday 11 January 2022, with the final budget discussed at a Full Council meeting on 17 February 2022.

The Scrutiny meeting will be available to stream on Suffolk County Council's YouTube channel, and public questions can be submitted in advance, details available at <u>www.suffolk.gov.uk</u>

### Annual Public Health Report focuses on Mental Health impact of Covid-19

On December 2<sup>nd</sup> Suffolk County Council endorsed far-reaching recommendations to improve Suffolk people's mental health and wellbeing.



This includes the creation of a dedicated fund of £2.5m and the development of a cross-system group to support community wellbeing in Suffolk.

Each year, the Director of Public Health in Suffolk produces an independent report, which explores a topic or area of strategic focus that is of importance to Suffolk. This year's report titled "Better, together: Public Mental Health in Suffolk", focuses on the actions that need to be taken to support and enable good mental health and wellbeing in the community, following the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic.

The strains of the Covid-19 pandemic have meant that the issue of mental health has been in the public consciousness like never before. The unprecedented measures required to reduce the spread of the virus, have placed extraordinary pressures, and demands on the whole population, with around 1 in 5 adults in Britain experiencing some form of depression in the first three months of 2021 – more than double the figure prior to the pandemic. Almost half of adults have reported that their emotional and mental wellbeing has been affected.

The report highlights that those impacts may be as damaging and long-lasting as the physical effects of the virus. It focuses on actions which can be taken by communities, public and private sector organisations to try and mitigate these effects and protect and promote good public mental health in Suffolk now and for the future.

longer term recovery. The Health and Wellbeing Board will oversee this and will be discussing principles for how to deliver the recommendations at its next meeting in January.

# Suffolk County Council approves extra £20m investment in highway drainage and footpaths

It was announced on December 7<sup>th</sup> that Cabinet members have committed an extra £20 million over the next three years into further improving Suffolk's highway drainage systems and footpaths.

In recognition of the increasing maintenance demand on these areas, councillors approved the use of £10 million to specifically deliver an increasing number of drainage schemes that deal with problems that affect larger numbers of people, and a further £10 million to improve footpath quality and access.

Suffolk Highways will use the drainage investment alongside funding from the Department for Transport to increase the number of highway flooding sites which are resolved, providing a highway network that is more resilient and accessible during heavy rain and severe weather events.

The footpath investment will be focused on urban areas and busy footpaths in rural areas - providing a safer and more accessible network that supports people accessing local bus services, health care services and local shopping precincts.

# Significant investment in firefighting equipment secures safer future for Suffolk

On December 10<sup>th</sup>, Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service added to the lifesaving kit at its disposal – cementing the county's continued commitment to protecting its people.

A significant investment from the service in new equipment has seen the introduction of digital radios, smoke hoods and smoke curtains – benefitting both residents and firefighters across Suffolk.



The state-of-the-art digital handheld radios offer a clearer and greater range than previous models – vastly improving communication between firefighters when attending incidents.

These are accompanied by two pieces of new equipment designed specifically to reduce the harmful impact of smoke. All fire engines will now carry escape smoke hoods – enabling firefighters to protect people when rescuing or evacuating them from fires. Smoke curtains have also been introduced to help ensure that escape routes are kept clear of smoke, while also aiding in protecting property by reducing smoke damage.

This equipment can be used in a range of incidents, with it already proving invaluable in Lowestoft earlier today, where two occupants were rescued from a property following a kitchen fire suspected to have been caused by cooking left unattended.

## Over 10,000 new LED streetlights installed across Suffolk

On December 17<sup>th</sup> Suffolk's LED replacement programme reached a new milestone, with over 10,000 streetlights upgraded with new, sustainable LEDs.

Bouygues Energies & Services, the contractor leading the programme has successfully installed 10,799 new lanterns and counting as part of the project to replace all 43,400 streetlights in the county. These lanterns use less energy and produce a more natural and focused light than the traditional orange glow of streetlights.

The project, which is due to complete by the end of 2022 will also allow opportunity for other streetlight owners within Suffolk such as Parish and District Councils to upgrade their streetlights as part of this process.

This upgrade supports Suffolk County Council's ambitions for becoming a carbon-neutral organisation by 2030. The benefits include; supporting a reduction in carbon emissions by saving energy and reducing light pollution, as well as providing clearer images on CCTV, traffic cameras and dashcam footage for the benefit of public safety.

The teams have been working their way through the west of the county and are making progress in Stowmarket and Sudbury.

Aside from the reduction in energy usage and minimising light pollution, the project will also bring down ongoing maintenance costs for the authority. The County Council expects to reduce its annual electricity costs on the streetlights by around 76%, saving more than £1.7 million a year.

By upgrading the lighting system with smart technology, this will increase the control the County Council has over its power consumption which will further reduce costs.

Prior to commencing in towns or parishes, Suffolk Highways is contacting those councils in case they wish to upgrade their parish-council owned street-lighting at the same time. All heritage-style lanterns which have been identified will be upgraded towards the end of the programme.

# Appendix 2 – District Councillor's Report

# District Councillor's Report: Onehouse Ward Parish Council January 2022

	There have only been 7 working days since my last report and consequently there was little new to add until 5 minutes ago, when we were informed <b>meetings would be held virtually for the next couple of months.</b> Meetings will 'provide a steer' to officer who will take delegated decisions. Since May 2021 we have called on Government to extend the Covid emergency powers to allow legal decisions by virtual meetings, but that has not happened. If Parish Councils wish to use similar arrangements, please contact the MSDC Monitoring Officer, <u>Emily.Yule@baberghmidsuffolk.gov.uk</u> for advice.
Review of councillors' allowances	I contributed to the independent panel reviewing council allowances and put our group's case that allowances should be reviewed and set at the end of the 4 year term, prior to the elections so that councillors were not voting for their own pay award.
Scrutiny of CAB	The only other formal meeting was of the Overview and Scrutiny committee which reviewed the support of the councils for citizens advice services. Mid Suffolk Currently Spends £95,000 mainly supporting the centre in Stowmarket with smaller amounts to Ipswich and Bury. Advice services have continued through the pandemic mainly by telephone and online. Increased pressure is expected as furlough has ended, and the reduction of universal credit and energy price increases take effect.
Free travel for vaccinations	There is a Suffolk wide scheme for people who need to travel to get a COVID vaccination to get free transport either by bus or taxi. Details can be found here <a href="https://www.suffolk.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/covid-19-vaccinations-in-suffolk/">https://www.suffolk.gov.uk/coronavirus-covid-19/covid-19-vaccinations-in-suffolk/</a>
Solar car port	Works to install 70 solar carports at Mid Suffolk Leisure Centre in Stowmarket have now begun. The scheme form part of a £2.8m investment in solar at the councils leisure centres; with £1.4m in funding for the solar carports pilot, and a further £1.4m in funding to install solar panels and other energy saving measures on the leisure centre buildings.
New homes Needham Market	Part of the housing development on the former MSDC Council Office car park in Needham Market has been completed. 8 new affordable homes were ready for families to move in at the beginning of December. This development of housing is being built by MSDC in partnership with Norse Group.

John Matthissen <u>councillor@matthissen.net</u> 01449 258894

07976 308128